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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I would like to

          3  welcome you to today's session of the Council

          4  Committee on Finance.

          5                 Today we will be conducting our MMR

          6  oversight hearings as it relates to the Department

          7  of Finance and Department of Design and

          8  Construction.

          9                 It is our hope to improve our

         10  understanding of how well the agencies are

         11  operating, as well as how clear a picture of agency

         12  operations the document is in fact giving us.

         13                 For the information provided in this

         14  report, the Department of Design and Construction

         15  appears to be greatly improving its project

         16  management.

         17                 Project durations have declined

         18  significantly, and many more projects are coming in

         19  closer to budget.

         20                 However, it is our belief that we

         21  could better track the agency's performance, on a

         22  general, as well as a specific project basis, if the

         23  quarterly construction and design indicator

         24  certificate to proceed some reason, access to the

         25  project management information system that the
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          2  Council was supposed to receive were actually

          3  provided.

          4                 Likewise, it appears that the

          5  Department of Finance is taking great strides toward

          6  consolidating collection and payment efforts to

          7  improve its collections and to make payment easier

          8  for New Yorkers.

          9                 However, I must point out that in

         10  some cases it appears that from year to year the

         11  means of providing data in the MMR changes, making

         12  it harder to compare agency performance from one

         13  year to the next.

         14                 This was the case in this Year's MMR

         15  report relating to certain aspects of Finance's

         16  performance.

         17                 For instance, last year we were given

         18  numbers concerning the amount of money assessed

         19  against taxpayers for each type of audit the

         20  Department performed.

         21                 This year we are given the amounts of

         22  revenues collected.

         23                 These figures are not really

         24  comparable, so we have requested of the Commissioner

         25  to bring comparable data with him today, although I
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          2  realize he is not responsible for the change in the

          3  presentation of this data.

          4                 In addition to these hearings, we

          5  have five Land Use items that will be preconsidered,

          6  which is always an exciting moment in these

          7  proceedings.

          8                 Having said that now, Mr. Eristoff, I

          9  am delighted to welcome you back to the City

         10  Council, and congratulate you on the performance of

         11  your job. I believe that you have proven our faith

         12  in you again, as you have undertaken you new

         13  performance, and I believe you have done a

         14  superlative job. And I am delighted that you are

         15  here, and I look forward, and I am in a state of

         16  eager anticipation to hear your report and your

         17  review.

         18                 So, again, welcome back to the

         19  Council. Is this your first return?

         20                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Indeed it is.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: It is a momentous

         22  occasion. It is a day that New Yorkers will not soon

         23  forget.

         24                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Thank you,

         25  Comptroller Berman -- I am sorry, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That's okay, I

          3  don't want to inhibit you. Is there anything else

          4  you want to say about that subject?

          5                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Good morning,

          6  Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee on Finance. I

          7  am pleased to be here today to elaborate on the

          8  Department of Finance's management performance

          9  during Fiscal 1999. This is my first appearance

         10  before the City Council since becoming Commissioner

         11  on July 1st.

         12                 As my remarks will necessarily

         13  concern activities, accomplishments and issues that

         14  predated my arrival at Finance, I have asked senior

         15  members of my staff to join me today to help answer

         16  any questions you might have.

         17                 The Department's core missions are

         18  administering and enforcing the City's tax laws,

         19  collecting judgments and other charges, processing

         20  and adjudicating other parking summonses, and

         21  registering real and personal property records.

         22                 During Fiscal 1999, we continued to

         23  fulfill those missions, while improving overall

         24  efficiency, upgrading service delivery and enhancing

         25  the business climate. Allow me to offer some

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  highlights.

          3                 Tax revenue: Thanks in part to a

          4  healthy City economy, the Department collected $12.5

          5  billion, an increase of $400 million over last

          6  year's $12.1 billion. Property tax revenues were

          7  $7.6 billion, compared to $7.2 billion during Fiscal

          8  1998.

          9                 ICIP: In Fiscal 1999, the City

         10  distributed an estimated $116 million in ICIP

         11  benefits, compared to over $100 million in 1998.

         12  Thanks in part to your support, the ICIP program has

         13  been extended for an additional four years.

         14                 Tax reform: As part of the Mayor's

         15  tax reform task force, the Department's Office of

         16  Tax Policy participated in developing several major

         17  tax reduction programs and initiatives designed to

         18  eliminate inequities and modernize the City's

         19  current tax system. The task force will soon issue a

         20  final report proposing reductions on the commercial

         21  end tax, on incorporated business tax, general

         22  corporation tax and utility tax.

         23                 The task force will also recommend

         24  eliminating City nuisance taxes, such as the auto

         25  use tax and the commercial motor vehicle tax for
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          2  light trucks.

          3                 The Department will develop a Fiscal

          4  Year 2001 tax reduction program based on these

          5  proposals.

          6                 Tax lien sale. Since 1996, under

          7  guidelines established in conjunction with your

          8  Committee, Mr. Chairman, the Department has sold

          9  delinquent tax liens to several or separate private

         10  trusts to enhance collections from previously

         11  delinquent property owners.

         12                 During Fiscal 1999, the Department

         13  successfully completed its fourth tax lien sale,

         14  collecting over 200 million in delinquent charges in

         15  relation to 3,400 properties. We continue to

         16  schedule regular annual sales of liens as they

         17  become eligible for consideration based on the

         18  length of delinquency and amount due.

         19                 We look forward to consulting with

         20  you as we move this highly successful program

         21  forward in Fiscal 2000 and beyond.

         22                 Citywide Consolidations (NYCSERV)

         23  Project: The Department is spearheading the

         24  development of state-of-the-art front-end

         25  technologies, collectively known as the NYCSERV

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  system, that will knit together six major legacy

          3  systems - FAIRTAX, CAMIS, STARS, BARAMIS, CIS and

          4  TOPIS - and related business processes within a

          5  user-friendly convenient  system environment.

          6                 NYCSERV system highlights include

          7  automatically apply payments across selected

          8  mainframe systems and permitting payments over the

          9  Internet, via telephone, and in various locations

         10  through self-serve kiosk stations.

         11                 The NYCSERV project will also

         12  facilitate the creation of a paperless adjudication

         13  system by including an automated hearing management

         14  system that will provide on-line retrieval of

         15  summonses, decision templates, and related data.

         16                 Phase One of NYCSERV was completed

         17  during the Third Quarter of Fiscal 1999. As part of

         18  the second phase, the Department will soon implement

         19  an Internet-based electronic tax and water account

         20  billing information application for the real estate

         21  industry.

         22                 Payment Innovations: During Fiscal

         23  1999, the Department began accepting credit card

         24  payments for parking fines for related towing fees.

         25  This convenience is now available via telephonic
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          2  interactive voice response or IVR or at any of our

          3  Help Centers or Business Centers. We are now working

          4  on strategies to provide this convenience securely

          5  over the Internet.

          6                 Parking Violations: City enforcement

          7  agencies issued 8.9 million summonses during Fiscal

          8  1999, a decline from 9.1 million in Fiscal 1998.

          9  Consequently, total parking fine collections were

         10  $370.6 million, compared to $377.9 million in Fiscal

         11  1998. The Department is now participating in a

         12  Parking Violations Interagency Coordinating Council

         13  to pursue procedural enhancements and improve the

         14  processing of parking summonses.

         15                 Neighborhood Payment Centers: The

         16  Department collected over the past year $8.5 million

         17  in parking violation debt and over $16 million in

         18  Real Estate Tax payments through an expanding

         19  network of Neighborhood Payment Centers, or NPCs.

         20  The centers provide a user-friendly convenient forum

         21  for making such payments, and with the addition of

         22  114 new locations during Fiscal 1999, there are

         23  currently 320 NPCs in operation throughout the City

         24  and outlying suburbs.

         25                 Although figures are still
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          2  preliminary, we believe that the expansion of the

          3  NPCs and the telephone IVR program is diverting some

          4  payment activity away from our traditional payment

          5  facilities, to the benefit of many customers who now

          6  experience shorter lines and waiting periods.

          7                 Co-op/Condo Abatement Program: With

          8  your critical support, the State Legislature

          9  extended the existing co-op/condo abatement program

         10  for another two years. This abatement provides

         11  owners of cooperatives and condominiums with a tax

         12  reduction, helping to equalize taxes between Class

         13  One homeowners and Class Two co-op and condo owners.

         14                 The legislation, which incorporated

         15  the Department's request to simplify the application

         16  procedure for co-ops effective FY01, also requires a

         17  report setting forth a long-term reform proposal by

         18  the end of this year. We are now in the process of

         19  drafting that report.

         20                 New York State School Tax Relief or

         21  STAR Program: The STAR program provides tax relief

         22  in the form of property tax exemptions to owners of

         23  one, two, and three-family homes, co-ops and

         24  condominiums. An enhanced exemption provides

         25  additional savings to senior citizens whose annual
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          2  incomes do not exceed $60,000. The Department sent

          3  informational mailings to eligible households and

          4  will continue to reach out to taxpayers with

          5  information on registering for the program.

          6                 Looking Ahead: Many new and exciting

          7  initiatives are already underway to improve the

          8  Department's operational efficiency and customer

          9  services, enhance City revenues and enrich the

         10  business climate. To highlight a few:

         11                 - Website Enhancements. We

         12  significantly enhanced the Department's web site by

         13  adding nearly 100 new forms, frequently asked

         14  questions and answers, licensing information, and a

         15  TAXCOP e-mail addredss for citizens wishing to

         16  report non-compliance.

         17                 In an effort to provide taxpayers and

         18  tax practitioners with additional guidance, we

         19  posted over 20 Statements of Audit Procedure and

         20  will post all new SAPs as they are issued. We are

         21  also working on modifications that will allow

         22  taxpayers to update address information in FAIRTAX

         23  automatically.

         24                 Booklet X: We are making Booklet X -

         25  our voluminous compendium of tax forms and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  instructions - available on CD-ROM.

          3                 I might add, it was somewhat

          4  surprising to me, but it turns out it is cheaper per

          5  unit to produce  CD-ROM than it is to print up a big

          6  forms booklet.

          7                 Finance Memoranda: The Department has

          8  created a new form of practitioner guidance called

          9  Finance Memoranda, which will serve as brief

         10  announcements of departmental policy and procedure.

         11  We distribute memoranda to tax publications and the

         12  practitioner community, and post them on its

         13  Website.

         14                 Electronic Document Imaging Project:

         15  The Department is moving ahead with an ambitious

         16  project to provide an electronic document imaging

         17  system for real and personal property records. Once

         18  completed, this system will make index listings and

         19  literally millions of document pages available to

         20  the public on line.

         21                 Lock Box Innovations: During the past

         22  fiscal year, the Department awarded a new Lock Box

         23  contract for the collection of business taxes. This

         24  new contract offers several important innovations.

         25  First, a new contractor has already begun to process
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          2  telephone-based electronic hotel tax forms, and will

          3  soon accept PC-based filings. This marks the

          4  Department's first entry into the new field of

          5  "e-filing." We hope to build on this Hotel Tax

          6  pilot project to offer e-filing for many of our

          7  business taxes as soon as practicable.

          8                 Second, the contractor will provide

          9  the Department with electronic images of tax

         10  returns, rather than old-fashioned microfilm, for

         11  administrative, audit and research purposes.

         12                 Electronic Tax and Payment

         13  Administration: The Department recently established

         14  an internal Electronic Tax and Payment

         15  Administration or ETPA Task Force to explore ways of

         16  leveraging new data communications technologies to

         17  improve efficiency and improve customer services.

         18  The ETPA Task Force's objectives include

         19  reducing/eliminating paper processing,

         20  simplifying/automating administrative and payment

         21  procedures, reducing printing and postage costs,

         22  improving processing accuracy and lowering

         23  administrative and processing costs.

         24                 Quality Finance: Finally, last week

         25  we launched a new management program called Quality
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          2  Finance. The purpose of Quality Finance is to

          3  promote "quality" as a core value in everything we

          4  do at Finance, especially with respect to customer

          5  service, work product and work environment.

          6                 A key facet of the program will be

          7  the creation of Quality Teams in every division.

          8  These teams, made up of volunteer employees drawn

          9  from every level, will conduct short-term studies

         10  and make recommendations with respect to specific

         11  work issues and processes. I look forward to sharing

         12  the positive results of this program with you when

         13  we next appear before you.

         14                 Your questions, Mr. Chairman. Before

         15  I conclude my remarks, I would like to specifically

         16  address the questions raised in Chairman's Berman's

         17  November 19th letter concerning the format for MMR

         18  indicators.

         19                 Each year agency staff meets with the

         20  Mayor's Office of Operations to review the MMR

         21  categories and indicators for recommended

         22  improvements. Prior to the release of the February

         23  1999 preliminary MMR, the Department and the Mayor's

         24  Office met and determined that it was appropriate

         25  the audit assessment data to report instead on the
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          2  audit revenue collected. Since the assessment amount

          3  is most often negotiated during the audit process,

          4  revenue collected is a more meaningful indicator.

          5                 I just point out that the February

          6  report referenced the revision of this indicator in

          7  a footnote.

          8                 The reference to the collection of

          9  delinquent taxes in the narrative section of the

         10  September 1998 report is attributable to a PEG. The

         11  reference does not appear in the September 1999

         12  report because the PEG was met a year before. Of

         13  course, we routinely report collections in the MMR

         14  volume on statistical indicators.

         15                 Finally, the Fiscal Year 1999 lien

         16  sales narrative's reference to "delinquent charges

         17  sold" reports on the same data as previously

         18  discussed in terms of revenue raised.

         19                 I apologize if our editing error

         20  created confusion.

         21                 In closing, on behalf of the

         22  Department I would like to express our gratitude to

         23  you, Mr. Chairman, and the members of this

         24  Committee, and the members of your professional

         25  staff for your past and continued cooperation and
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          2  support for our work.

          3                 Thank you for your consideration this

          4  morning. I would be happy to answer any questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Eristoff. I appreciate those nice words, and thank

          7  you for that comprehensive report.

          8                 In October of '96, the Council

          9  published a report quote "It's In The Mail: A

         10  Customer Service Evaluation of City Agencies'

         11  Responsiveness to Public Inquiries and Complaints."

         12  Small title.

         13                 The Council found that most City

         14  agencies failed to timely respond to posted mail. In

         15  response, the Mayor's Office of Operations initiated

         16  a review of agencies' internal procedures for

         17  processing and responding to public mail, including

         18  the electronic mail or commonly known as e-mail.

         19                 Fiscal '97 preliminary Mayor's

         20  Management Report announced that Operations had

         21  informed the agencies of standards for

         22  implementation of correspondence, tracking systems,

         23  including appointment of a correspondence and a

         24  specified response time.

         25                 The '97 PMR, Preliminary Management
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          2  Report also reported that Operations was also

          3  working with the Mayor's Office and DoITT to ensure

          4  that a protocol through routing e-mail was being

          5  maintained. Today we want to follow up on that. So,

          6  a couple of questions.

          7                 Are you familiar with the Citywide

          8  protocol for e-mail routing, tracking and response

          9  time?

         10                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, could you

         12  provide us -- could you describe it for us? If you

         13  can't describe it, but have a written protocol, if

         14  you can provide us with a copy of it?

         15                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Let me take a

         16  stab at this and perhaps where I fall short, perhaps

         17  Deputy Commissioner Lempin may fill in.

         18                 We, of course, are following the

         19  Citywide guidelines. We have appointed a

         20  communications liaison. In fact, we are calling the

         21  position"communications coordinator" for the agency

         22  in my office. We are aware of Citywide standards

         23  which really have come down to one thing, which is a

         24  response within ten days to all forms of

         25  correspondence.
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          2                 In addition, Mr. Chairman, I should

          3  point out that I am equally concerned, not only with

          4  the timeliness of our response, but also the quality

          5  of that response, and making sure that staff members

          6  recognize that e-mail correspondence, as in the case

          7  of mail correspondence, is to be done in an

          8  appropriate and professional manner.

          9                 Too often we forget that e-mail is in

         10  fact a professional environment. It is a form of

         11  communication that deserves a full amount of

         12  respect.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So then you are

         14  treating it the same way as you would the regular

         15  written correspondence?

         16                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Absolutely.

         17                 So, that is our basic approach. We

         18  have submitted a customer service plan to the

         19  Mayor's Office, the Deputy Mayor for Operations. And

         20  so far we are implementing it.

         21                 One other item. I mentioned quality

         22  finance in my formal remarks. A key aspect of

         23  quality finance will include the monitoring of our

         24  customer service in relation to answering mail and

         25  other forms of communication.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, in

          3  connection with that, routinely when you receive an

          4  e-mail, do you request a mailing address from the

          5  corresponders?

          6                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I believe we

          7  do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I don't want to

          9  obsess over it. I was just curious and if you do --

         10                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I think we

         11  routinely try to respond in writing.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right. So,

         13  you don't necessarily respond by e-mail.

         14                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: If it is

         16  appropriate we will. And in some cases we may have

         17  to follow up in writing or a phone call or a

         18  meeting, it depends on the circumstances, if it is a

         19  more complicated case.

         20                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Let me just

         21  offer one little anecdote. I actually tested the

         22  system myself. I logged on our website one night a

         23  few weeks ago, and sent in a message with a fairly

         24  complicated question and the system worked. I got a

         25  response back the next day, which was sort of nice
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          2  and reassuring.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: How did you get a

          4  response? By e-mail?

          5                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I got a

          6  response both by e-mail and phone.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That is

          8  impressive.

          9                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes. And I

         10  specifically tested this because I am concerned

         11  about meeting the Mayor's standards, and from time

         12  to time the Mayor's Office, as you know, runs its

         13  own tests so I try to replicate that environment for

         14  us.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I assume that

         16  your e-mail address was not Commissioner of

         17  Finance.com?

         18                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: No.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I am kidding,

         20  Andrew.

         21                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: The boss.com,

         22  yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: The boss.com,

         24  yes.

         25                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Just another
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          2  point on this. We are also modifying our web site to

          3  provide a much more sophisticated gateway for

          4  practitioners and others with technical questions

          5  from the Department of Finance. We are trying to

          6  come up with a way of managing the technical

          7  questions that come in, as you know, we get tens of

          8  thousands of letters, we also get lots of e-mail

          9  communications and phone calls. We hope that this

         10  new facility, this new gateway for practitioners

         11  will help focus some of the more technical questions

         12  appropriately.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, I do want

         14  you to know, by the way, Commissioner, that I had an

         15  experience with your office with regard to an

         16  unfortunate set of circumstances surrounding a lien

         17  that should not have been sold, and an instance

         18  where the finance company, the mortgage company made

         19  payments but made it on the wrong parcel of land,

         20  and Commissioner Lempin, your Deputy, and your

         21  staff, particularly the liaison, and I have

         22  forgotten his name, I am sorry.

         23                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Mr. LaBarbara.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Right.

         25                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Joe Kovac, in
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          2  that case?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Right, yes,

          4  precisely. Incredibly responsive, and they actually

          5  saved the sale of this property that had gone along

          6  for such a long period of time, and it was at that

          7  point where they were going to lose their property.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Thank you for

          9  the recognition.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: They have done an

         11  outstanding job, and having been, having oversight

         12  of the lien process, I was delighted that the system

         13  worked.

         14                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I was concerned

         16  with it and it did work.

         17                 Mr. Robles, did you have questions?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And then I will

         20  return for some more questions.

         21                 Mr. Robles.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:

         23  Congratulations to you on your appointment.

         24                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Let me ask you
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          2  a question, and I am seeking to see what your plans

          3  are, since you are a new commissioner, and I don't

          4  hold you accountable, but I want to bring it to your

          5  attention.

          6                 One of the things that has been

          7  brought to my attention is on your access kiosk,

          8  people are telling me that the only language to get

          9  service is in English.

         10                 Given the nature of the City and the

         11  census around the corner, and while in no way I am

         12  not saying that the language, the principle language

         13  is English, there are people, homeowners and what

         14  have you, who may not have yet the command of the

         15  English language, and a lot of the information might

         16  be foreign to them when you deal in English.

         17                 Are there any plans at least to

         18  attempt to focus on those languages where you have a

         19  large number?

         20                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: My

         21  understanding, let me just answer your basic

         22  question, yes. Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

         24                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I hope by the

         25  next time we are together we will be able to report
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          2  to you specifically about how we are making our

          3  critical customer services via web, you know, the

          4  web site and the kiosk, which is a related program

          5  available in Spanish, for instance.

          6                 But I thought there is already some

          7  basic information that is already in Spanish.

          8                 Assistant Commissioner Hynes just

          9  reminded me that the access finance kiosk are in the

         10  nature of a pilot project, that is why they didn't

         11  include the Spanish language.

         12                 We are, however, as I mentioned

         13  before, engaged in this Citywide consolidation

         14  effort, which will include a worldwide web interface

         15  and enhancements to the kiosk program, and in that

         16  context we will build in Spanish language capacity,

         17  as is appropriate, given the fact that we are an

         18  International City.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, let me

         20  be clear, and I appreciate what you are saying to

         21  me, which is why I raise the question.

         22                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: While I

         24  appreciate Spanish being a language, I want to

         25  perhaps evaluate my constituency, and in this City.
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          2  There are other languages who are becoming a

          3  language which is other than Spanish, too.

          4                 For example, we are having a lot of

          5  orientals who are now becoming home owners, so you

          6  may have the Koreans -- so, while I appreciate,

          7  Commissioner, of which still perhaps the census will

          8  clearly identify that Hispanics or Latinos is a

          9  large growing population, I want to also say that I

         10  think it is evaluation of what other languages maybe

         11  we should, or what kind of hook-up can we provide,

         12  like the police and other agencies that when in the

         13  absence of the agency providing it, they could hook

         14  up through a phone system and provide those

         15  languages.

         16                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes, your

         17  point is well taken. I mean, in the shortrun it is a

         18  question of resources translating hundreds of pages

         19  of documents can be expensive and time consuming. We

         20  recognize, though, that it is an important goal for

         21  the City. It is our public policy to accommodate

         22  different communities, different languages, and so

         23  we will act accordingly.

         24                 I like your idea of perhaps providing

         25  gateways or facilities for those with other
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          2  languages that may not have reached the critical

          3  mass that you referred to before, so that they might

          4  be able to be referred to a community organization

          5  of the like for specific help. I think it is a great

          6  idea, because that wouldn't require us to translate,

          7  you know, hundreds of pages of forms and documents

          8  into any one of the 160 odd languages that the City

          9  now speaks, okay?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay. Before we

         11  go to the members of the Committee, Commissioner, I

         12  understand that overtime in the Department of

         13  Finance appears to be increasing at the rate of

         14  about ten percent per year. Could you give us the

         15  reason for this increase? I mean, is it as a

         16  consequence? We had been unable to determine this

         17  from the MMR, but are you particularly short in the

         18  number of positions or whatever? Have you analyzed

         19  this, or are you not aware, possibly not aware of

         20  it?

         21                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I have really

         22  one brief answer, but I am going to ask our Budget

         23  Director, Jessie Ostrau, to elaborate. It is

         24  essentially Y2K related. We have had to spend a lot

         25  of extra money on preparing our systems. We are, by
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          2  the way, compliant. That attributes or that accounts

          3  for much of the differential that you have noted.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That is a fair

          5  answer, but by all means if the Budget Director

          6  could assist us.

          7                 MR. OSTRAU: The Commissioner is

          8  correct, it is primarily --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Could you

         10  identify yourself, sir.

         11                 MR. OSTRAU: My name is Jessie Ostrau,

         12  I am Chief Financial Officer for the Department of

         13  Finance.

         14                 I would just add to the

         15  Commissioner's comments that in addition to the

         16  Y2K-related overtime, there has been some overtime

         17  to address seasonal needs, such as related to the

         18  tax lien sale, where we need to staff up our

         19  telephone lines to deal with comments from the

         20  public and questions related to the tax lien sale,

         21  and also to address backlogs in the City registers

         22  office.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, that is a

         24  reasonable response. I couldn't catch you. I tried.

         25                 Mr. Spigner.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Local Law 98

          3  amended the tax lien sale procedure in 1997 to

          4  designate an employee of the Department to respond

          5  to inquiries from senior citizens who own property

          6  for which a tax lien has been sold or notice for

          7  sale.

          8                 Why does the MMR provide no

          9  objectives or indicators that will illuminate the

         10  number or types of inquiries the Department is

         11  receiving from seniors in this regard, or their

         12  resolution?

         13                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I don't know

         14  that we would treat an inquiry -- we take all

         15  inquiries in relation to the tax lien sale equally

         16  seriously. I guess that is the short answer. Perhaps

         17  to elaborate I would call upon Deputy Commissioner

         18  Lempin who oversees the tax lien sales.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: Well, we

         20  do keep the information internally. We do not report

         21  it in the Mayor's Management Report because in the

         22  MMR we are pulling out mission critical indicators.

         23                 It is an important indicator but it

         24  is part of a larger customer service profile in

         25  terms of the number of inquiries that we got.
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          2                 But we do have internal data. We

          3  monitor the tax lien sale inquiries very closely. We

          4  work very closely with your offices, in fact, in

          5  making sure that --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I don't know

          7  about the offices, I know you work closely with my

          8  office, Mr. Lempin.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: Well, we

         10  do with all of the Council offices.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: And you know

         12  that senior citizens are probably the largest

         13  category of people that need help, and often times

         14  their delinquency occurs, not so much as a lack of

         15  funds, but just a lack of sophistication, or just

         16  getting old and not as responsible as we once were.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: Well, I

         18  think as you know, we did establish a senior citizen

         19  tax lien ombudsman's office in addition to a general

         20  tax lien ombudsman. We have had that unit now for

         21  two consecutive lien sales. So, we have staff --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I was unaware

         23  of the senior citizens ombudsman.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: We have a

         25  separate group that handles that senior calls, we
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          2  have a separate telephone line.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I encourage

          4  that, and I can see the need for it.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: So, I

          6  think that we are now reporting in the MMR, but we

          7  do have the internal data available, if you would

          8  like to take a look at it we will share it with you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: It sounds

         10  good to me. If that information was quantified in

         11  some way in the MMR, on the face it would be helpful

         12  -- as long as it was there I think I can appreciate

         13  it, but I think it would be helpful for those who

         14  don't have the opportunity to dig and have this

         15  one-to-one exchange with you.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: I will

         17  take it into consideration.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Do you have any

         20  statistics as to what the number of minutes, people

         21  who call up with inquiries, have to hold before they

         22  can get a response?

         23                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I don't think

         24  we have those figures with us. We obviously track

         25  waiting time.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I notice in the

          3  MMR that we received, you do provide information as

          4  to parking violations waiting time, but no

          5  tax-paying information waiting time.

          6                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Well, that,

          7  frankly, is kind of a different process. The City

          8  collectors office --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Suggesting that

         10  people who pay parking tickets are more prone to

         11  violence?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: No. But we get

         13  many more "customers" in the parking violations

         14  context in terms of walk-ins.

         15                 It is just a different operation.

         16  City Collectors Offices typically don't have long

         17  waiting lines. Even at peak periods we get extra

         18  mail, we get extra telephone inquiries, of course,

         19  but we don't get a flood of walk-in --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, as a fan of

         21  your agency and your job product, and you know that

         22  I am, I will tell you that in one instance one of

         23  our attorneys called up to get some information from

         24  the taxpayers assistance unit and was put on hold

         25  for approximately 20 minutes, which seems an
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          2  inordinate amount of time.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: In fact,

          4  there are some periods during the year where the

          5  wait can be even longer. If it is a peak real estate

          6  payment period --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You mean like the

          8  quarter --

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: At the

         10  quarter or at the half, it is not unusual for the

         11  waits to be even longer. They can be 45 to 50

         12  minutes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So, actually,

         14  barring major, addition of major numbers of

         15  employees, you really are not going to be able to

         16  deal with that, can you?

         17                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Well,

         18  actually, I thought you were referring to waiting

         19  time in person, if somebody is coming in to pay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, that was my

         21  next question, so you might as well address that.

         22                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Do we track

         23  waiting time for people?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: We do. We

         25  track the waiting time for both walk-ins and for the
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          2  phone calls.

          3                 The walk-in waits are not long at

          4  all, but the waits will go up during the peak

          5  period. We just get tremendous numbers of customers

          6  calling and coming in for that two-week period just

          7  after the bills go out or the coupons, the payments

          8  are due.

          9                 We made some attempts to move staff

         10  around, to try to attack it with new technology that

         11  is in place and new technology that will be in place

         12  to help, but we do have a tough time for four,

         13  roughly four two-week periods every year where the

         14  volume goes up.

         15                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Right. We are

         16  trying a number of strategies to address waiting

         17  time generally.

         18                 As I mentioned before in my

         19  testimony, we have expanded the number of

         20  neighborhood payment centers. We have also moved

         21  ahead with this IVR, Interactive Voice Response

         22  system, that has siphoned off some activity, some

         23  payment activity away from our traditional

         24  facilities and should help lighten the load.

         25                 I have also allocated a few extra
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          2  staff members to our telephone taxpayer assistance

          3  line to help address waiting periods on the tax

          4  assistance line.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Commissioner,

          6  excuse me one moment.

          7                 Ladies and gentlemen, I am truly

          8  trying to hear what the Commissioner is saying.

          9                 Go ahead.

         10                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: So, just to

         11  conclude, we are trying a number of different

         12  strategies. We hope that the web site enhancements

         13  that we are making and have planned will help, and

         14  also the NYCER system which is the solid payment and

         15  adjudication system will also speed up customer

         16  service and reduce waiting time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I understand it

         18  is almost an impossible thing to really --

         19                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: No, but it is

         20  an important consideration. It is a key problem, any

         21  agency deals with the same issues. We are doing the

         22  best we can with our current resources. I am sorry,

         23  I don't think this mike is on.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Commissioner,

         25  this year's MMR eliminates information as to the
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          2  total amount of delinquent taxes; what is the reason

          3  for the elimination of that information and do you

          4  have that amount available for us?

          5                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: As I believe I

          6  mentioned in my prepared testimony, the reference in

          7  the '98 report due to collection of delinquent taxes

          8  referred to a PEG, a PEG item. Since that PEG item

          9  was met, we don't report on it again this year. It

         10  was an extraordinary item.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Oh.

         12                 Each neighborhood payment center, the

         13  cost to operate it, how much is that and how much

         14  are they bringing in in revenues? In other words, is

         15  it cost effective?

         16                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Well, they are

         17  very cost effective, they are highly successful. As

         18  I think I mentioned in my testimony, we collected

         19  eight and a half million in parking violation debt

         20  and 16 million in real estate tax debt. I will turn

         21  it over to Deputy Commissioner Lempin to tell you

         22  the cost for running each of these centers.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: Since the

         24  neighborhood payment centers is handled by an

         25  outside vendor, it really is a no-cost contract to
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          2  the Finance Department.

          3                 The customers are charged 75 cents

          4  per transaction.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: It is like a

          6  check cashing service.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: It is a

          8  check cashing service.

          9                 And as we expand and have more

         10  locations open, we are starting to see, as the

         11  Commissioner mentioned, we are starting to see a

         12  flow of some of our customers to the neighborhood

         13  payment centers. We have 320 of them open today, we

         14  are headed towards 400 by the end of the fiscal

         15  year, we are starting up about ten a month.

         16                 We do have some administrative costs

         17  and helping with reconciliation and auditing of the

         18  locations because they, the cash point, the vendor

         19  does the collection and then transmits the money to

         20  the bank. But there is no staffing cost to us, no

         21  direct, it is indirect.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So, actually it

         23  is a net gain.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: It is a

         25  net gain for us, correct.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: It is.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

          4                 Mr. Miller, you have a question?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Commissioner,

          6  what a pleasure it is to see you here in this

          7  particular forum.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: It is always a

          9  pleasure to see you, Council member.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you.

         11                 I wanted to ask a question as to what

         12  is the status, and I apologize, I came in, I was in

         13  the hearing next door, perhaps this has been

         14  addressed and you can just refer me to your remarks

         15  and I will check the transcripts, but I wanted to

         16  ask what the status of the Department's efforts were

         17  with regard to addressing the inequities of Class 1,

         18  Class 2 taxation, an issue which I know you are

         19  intimately familiar with.

         20                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Indeed.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I am sitting next

         22  to you and I am having trouble hearing you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: You know, that

         24  is probably the first time that has ever happened,

         25  Herbie.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Miller, most

          3  people have trouble not hearing you, but would you

          4  make a better effort?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: The question

          6  was: What is the status of the Department's efforts

          7  to address Class 1, Class 2 inequities.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: As you know,

          9  with Council's support the State Legislature

         10  extended the co-op condo abatement program last

         11  year, and part of that legislation includes the

         12  mandate that the Department had come up with a plan

         13  for tax reform by the end of this calendar year. We

         14  are now drafting that plan.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: And you expect

         16  by the end of this calendar year to have that plan

         17  completed?

         18                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: We will meet

         19  the law.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Good man.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for your

         22  kind indulgence.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you for

         24  your endorsement of the Commissioner's masculinity.

         25                 Ms. Wooten.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: Good morning.

          3                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Good morning.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: I am concerned

          5  about the opening of the Brooklyn Payment and

          6  Adjudication Center; is it going to open? What is

          7  the status of that?

          8                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: We are, as

          9  part of this Citywide consolidations project,

         10  opening new business centers in all of the boroughs.

         11  We have opened new centers in Queens and in Staten

         12  Island. We are now working very hard to do the same

         13  in Manhattan and the Bronx. We are further ahead in

         14  Manhattan, and then Brooklyn will be the final

         15  center.

         16                 The reason for that is it is quite

         17  complex. We have to take one at a time. The Brooklyn

         18  Center will be at 110 Jarolomen -- sorry, 210

         19  Jarolomen so it means a reconfiguration of our

         20  existing space.

         21                 We already have a City collector, we

         22  have a bunch of different finance officers already

         23  at 210 and so we will try to reconfigure that space

         24  into a new business center.

         25                 We are beginning the planning and we
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          2  hope to move ahead quite quickly. I would like to

          3  see this done by the time -- well, very, very soon.

          4  But what is our realistic time frame at this point?

          5  About two years at this point.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: Two years?

          7                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: Wasn't the

          9  target for the first of the year?

         10                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: No, it was

         11  never targeted for the first of the year.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: There are

         13  unique circumstances at 210 Jarolemon Street because

         14  of the status of the building, it is an older

         15  building, there are unique architectural issues. The

         16  difference between building a new center in the

         17  Bronx and Manhattan versus Brooklyn, is that the

         18  other building is going to be privately owned. This

         19  is a City-owned building and it is taking a little

         20  bit longer. We don't do the construction, so we are

         21  depending on working with other agencies.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: If it is a

         23  City-owned building we should not have problems in

         24  going in and doing what we are supposed to do.

         25                 Two years is a long time, from an
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          2  indication of the beginning of the millennium this

          3  is supposed to take place, even though we are last

          4  in Brooklyn.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: We were

          6  hoping that the project was going to be further

          7  along. There was a delay, for example, in moving out

          8  the existing tenants. The District Attorneys Office

          9  was there, there were a lot of other tenants in the

         10  building, they only moved within the last few months

         11  to other facilities in Brooklyn, so there were a lot

         12  of delays that were not attributed to us, but we are

         13  part of the team building it.

         14                 We have offices in the building

         15  already and they are very efficient. This new

         16  renovation will make our processes even more

         17  efficient, but it is delayed because of these unique

         18  circumstances, some out of our control.

         19                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: I hope my

         21  former colleague will make sure that it is less time

         22  than two years. If the City owns the building, we

         23  should not have had to go through that length of

         24  time to get this resolved, and it would seem to me

         25  that when you are making a selection of property
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          2  that interrelates to these kinds of projects, that

          3  it should be based on timely, unoccupied buildings

          4  so that we won't be delayed from what we had

          5  anticipated in the planning.

          6                 So, I am really not looking forward

          7  for two years, but rather as soon as we possibly

          8  can. At least begin to do something. You know, the

          9  whole world is changing, I don't want to get caught

         10  up in that change.

         11                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Your point is

         12  well taken. We are trying to move this as quickly as

         13  we can, given the limitations we have and the fact

         14  we have to work with other agencies, and other

         15  agencies that are not necessarily city agencies, in

         16  coordinating this project.

         17                 But we understand the importance of

         18  this to the Borough of Brooklyn, its citizens of

         19  Brooklyn, and to your district, and we are going to

         20  try to do it as quickly as possible.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Ms.

         22  Wooten.

         23                 Mr. Leffler.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Good morning

         25  to both of you. It's good to see you as
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          2  Commissioner. I hope you are happy in your position,

          3  and you, too, Mr. Lempin, I am glad to see you in

          4  this position.

          5                 I just wanted to ask you, I believe

          6  from time to time I have gotten comments with

          7  respect to the ability of people to pay or to

          8  discuss finance measures on a face-to-face basis in

          9  Queens.

         10                 Can you explain what your arrangement

         11  is, if people have problems with bills from the

         12  Finance Department and don't use e-mail and want a

         13  face-to-face discussion.

         14                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Well, we have

         15  a brand new business center in Queens and that

         16  center includes a customer service operation.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: It is on

         18  Sutphin Boulevard, one block south of the Long

         19  Island Railroad Station. It has been up and running

         20  now for close to two years.

         21                 We have I would say about 20 to 25

         22  customer service windows at the location. The

         23  waiting time is minimal. We use the electronic

         24  Q-Matic system, similar to what the Department of

         25  Motor Vehicles uses, to move our customers. We also
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          2  take parking ticket payments there, in addition to

          3  tax payments. We have an ECB facility there. They

          4  are partners with us. We also do parking violations

          5  hearings.

          6                 If there is a complex tax issue, the

          7  taxpayer, we have separate lines, we have got the

          8  fast lines, the quick lines and then we have the

          9  more complex lines where we may have to take the

         10  taxpayer off the line to meet with them separately

         11  and we have the facility to do that. So, I think it

         12  is a terrific operation there and we have gotten

         13  high marks, I think.

         14                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Council

         15  Member, have you had an opportunity to visit the

         16  Queens Center?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: No, I

         18  haven't.

         19                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I would like

         20  to issue an invitation to you and all of the members

         21  of the Committee, Mr. Chairman, to come and visit

         22  the new Queens Center, it really is an impressive

         23  facility.

         24                 I wish I could take credit for it,

         25  but I can't. It has been running for awhile. But I
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          2  think it represents the very best of what the City

          3  is moving towards in terms of customer service. And

          4  I think it would be instructive and interesting for

          5  you to tour the facility. It is the model for what

          6  we are trying to do in Brooklyn and in the other

          7  Boroughs as well.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: And just the

          9  last question. I read your testimony and heard much

         10  of it, do you have any additional goals to the

         11  Finance Department beyond what you set forth in your

         12  testimony?

         13                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes, I have

         14  got a lot of goals and a lot of initiatives

         15  underway.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Would you

         17  like to outline them briefly?

         18                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Well, I wanted

         19  to give you a teaser. As you know, today's MMR

         20  hearing is about last fiscal year.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right.

         22                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: We plan on

         23  moving forward with a number of different

         24  initiatives, both in tax policy and in our

         25  operational side. I mentioned some of the most
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          2  significant efforts. Within each of those larger

          3  initiatives, for instance, the web site, the

          4  electronic document imaging, the electronic tax and

          5  payment administration, there are literally dozens

          6  of smaller initiatives underneath those larger

          7  items. I would have trouble giving you a complete

          8  list off the top of my head. Suffice it to say,

          9  though, that everyone in the Department is pretty

         10  busy right now. I think my staff could confirm that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Are there

         12  additional needs that you see in the Finance

         13  Department to realize the goals that you seem to be

         14  saying you have many of?

         15                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I think we are

         16  okay. I think we are doing fine. You know, like

         17  every agency, we have our resource issues, but that

         18  is something that we can manage. You know, given

         19  unlimited resources we could eliminate waiting times

         20  and the like, but that is not going to happen, so we

         21  try to manage this as best we can. And I am trying

         22  several initiatives designed to improve the work

         23  environment and the quality of our customer service.

         24  Trying essentially to manage our existing resources

         25  a little bit more effectively to address our needs
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          2  or our customer's needs more properly.

          3                 So, I have no specific complaints.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Leffler.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Thank you,

          7  Commissioner. And best wishes to both of you.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, if

         10  there be no other questions, Commissioner, I again

         11  want to thank you, and trustfully and hopefully this

         12  was a moderately painless process, which you

         13  excelled at.

         14                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chairman. It is always a pleasure to see you, and

         16  members of the Council. I appreciate the opportunity

         17  to come visit with you under these circumstances.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Have a good

         19  Thanksgiving and please send my best to your family.

         20                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 Same to you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         24                 Commissioner Lempin, as always.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: Thank
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          2  you, Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: We are going to

          4  do the Land Use items next.

          5                 (Recess taken.)

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I welcome you

          7  back to the wonderful world of Finance.

          8                 Thank you, Sergeants. I realize that

          9  your excitement returning to do matters concerning

         10  Finance is overwhelming. I would like you

         11  nevertheless to contain your anxieties and your

         12  anticipation so that we can expeditiously deal with

         13  several items.

         14                 Mr. Henderson, are you here?

         15                 MR. HENDERSON: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Good morning, Mr.

         17  Henderson. How are you, sir?

         18                 Land Use, please go outside. Jim,

         19  will you please get members of the Finance Committee

         20  because we are going to vote in two minutes. And is

         21  Claude available?

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you for

         24  being here, Claude.

         25                 Okay, ladies and gentlemen, we have
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          2  several Land Use items to vote on.

          3                 Mr. Henderson, would you be good

          4  enough to identify yourself?

          5                 MR. HENDERSON: Henry Henderson,

          6  Finance Division of the Council.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Good morning, Mr.

          8  Henderson. How are you, sir?

          9                 MR. HENDERSON: Fine. How are you?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Have a good

         11  Thanksgiving.

         12                 MR. HENDERSON: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, Mr.

         14  Henderson. Everybody, you have a Land Use Finance

         15  Committee report in front of you, prepared by Mr.

         16  Henderson, and we are doing Land Use 553, 554, 555,

         17  82 and 89 preconsidered items.

         18                 If you go to the second page of that

         19  report you will see a summary. The first one is Land

         20  Use 553, which is a HomeWorks Program, Manhattan,

         21  Round 2 Central Harlem, and it is Council Member

         22  Perkins' district and there are 20 buildings, 64

         23  units. It is a six-year exemption, sir; is that

         24  correct?

         25                 MR. HENDERSON: That's correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And it is the

          3  first year $49,100, a total six-year exemption of

          4  $234,000.

          5                 Again, why is this a six-year

          6  exemption?

          7                 MR. HENDERSON: This is a

          8  middle-income housing program where the units are

          9  granted to the developer for a nominal price of a

         10  dollar, and it is just a six-year exemption that is

         11  needed to make this program feasible.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

         13  questions? Presumably Mr. Perkins has signed off on

         14  it?

         15                 MR. HENDERSON: Yes, he has.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right.

         17                 The next one is also a HomeWorks

         18  Program. This one is also Manhattan. It is also in

         19  Councilman Perkins' District. And it's five

         20  buildings, 15 units, also a six-year exemption.  The

         21  first year exemption is $16,800, the six-year

         22  exemption is $80,000.

         23                 MR. HENDERSON: That's correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

         25  questions of Mr. Henderson? And I assume that
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          2  Council Member Perkins has signed off on this one?

          3                 MR. HENDERSON: He has signed off on

          4  all of the projects in his district.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Pardon me?

          6                 MR. HENDERSON: He has signed off on

          7  all of the projects in his district.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, which would

          9  bring us to the next one, 555, which is again a

         10  HomeWorks Program, only this one is shared between

         11  Council Members Linares and Perkins, six buildings,

         12  18 units, six-year exemption. Total six-year

         13  exemption amount of $85,000, and I assume both

         14  Council Members have signed off?

         15                 MR. HENDERSON: Yes, they have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Any questions?

         17                 This is Council Member Perkins' day

         18  at the Finance Committee. The next one is 582 and is

         19  also Council Member Perkins. Same program, six

         20  years, six buildings, 30 units, total six-year

         21  exemption of 164,000. Council Member Perkins

         22  presumably has signed off?

         23                 MR. HENDERSON: Yes, he has.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Any questions?

         25                 The next one, so that we have some
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          2  level of change. This is a special initiatives

          3  program, and it is in Brooklyn in Council Member

          4  Malave-Dilan's district, one building, 19 units.

          5  This one is 32 years, and the 32-year exemption is

          6  $1,367,000.

          7                 MR. HENDERSON: That's correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Council Member

          9  Dilan has signed off on it?

         10                 MR. HENDERSON: Yes, he has.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Any questions?

         12                 Ms. Pinkett.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Why the 32

         14  years for this?

         15                 MR. HENDERSON: Why the 32-year

         16  exemption?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Yes.

         18                 MR. HENDERSON: This program houses

         19  homeless, low-income and very low income

         20  individuals, so they felt the 32-year exemption was

         21  what was needed to make this economically feasible.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Thank you.

         23                 MR. HENDERSON: You are welcome.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Next we have

         25  another special initiatives program, Council Member

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  Michels' district.

          3                 Six buildings, 101 units, 32 years

          4  also, with an $8,413,000 exemption. Council Member

          5  Michels has approved this?

          6                 MR. HENDERSON: Yes, he has.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

          8  questions?

          9                 Finally, there is Section 202,

         10  supportive housing to the elderly program, in the

         11  Bronx, Council Member Warden's district. One

         12  building, 46 units, 40-year exemption, with a total

         13  40-year exemption of $1,962,000.

         14                 MR. HENDERSON: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Approved

         16  presumably by Council Member Warden?

         17                 MR. HENDERSON: Yes, it has been.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And presumably

         19  everybody else has signed off on it.

         20                 Any questions from anybody?

         21                 If there be no questions, thank you,

         22  Mr. Henderson.

         23                 MR. HENDERSON: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Claude, are you

         25  here?
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Claude, could you

          4  do the roll call?

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Berman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Pinkett.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Spigner.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Leffler.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Foster.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: O'Donovan.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER O'DONOVAN: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Miller.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: McCaffrey.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Robles.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Rodriguez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Aye.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: How many is that?
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Ten.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, so

          4      that is ten votes in favor; is that correct?

          5                 Priscilla, how do you vote?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: Aye.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, so

          8  that is 11 for. Okay, the item passes.

          9                 Mr. Spigner will begin the MMR

         10  session with the Department of Design and

         11  Construction.

         12                 I will be right back.

         13                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Could we just

         14  ask Claude to announce the final vote for the Land

         15  Use Committee?

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Are the

         17  officials of the Department and Design Construction

         18  present? If you are, take a seat at the table.

         19                 Identify yourselves for the record,

         20  and we would be pleased to take your testimony on

         21  your participation in the government provided

         22  services to the people of the City of New York.

         23                 Do you have a prepared statement?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I have been
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          2  asked to interrupt the proceedings to announce the

          3  Land Use vote.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The final Land

          5  Use vote is 12 in the affirmative, none in the

          6  negative and no abstentions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Sir, will you

          8  identify yourself, please.

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: My name

         10  is Kenneth Holden, Acting Commissioner of Department

         11  of Design and Construction.

         12                 Good morning. I will read my prepared

         13  statement and then open it up for questions.

         14                 Councilman Spigner, distinguished

         15  members of the Finance Committee, I am Kenneth

         16  Holden, Acting Commissioner of the Department of

         17  Design and Construction. It was my privilege to have

         18  served as Commissioner Luis Tormenta's First Deputy

         19  Commissioner since the Department's start-up in

         20  1996.

         21                 I am here to make a presentation of

         22  DDC's progress as reported in the Mayor's Management

         23  Report, and I am joined by several members of my

         24  senior staff.

         25                 The MMR continues to be a valuable
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          2  tool for us. It provides us with the ability to

          3  measure our success, evaluate new initiatives, and

          4  identify areas where additional efforts need to be

          5  focused.

          6                 I am pleased to report that in our

          7  third year of operation, DDC exceeded its capital

          8  commitment plan target by $93 million. In FY '99 DDC

          9  committed the $195 million made available by the

         10  Mayor and the Council to fund repairs to the

         11  exterior of schools.

         12                 DDC receives school construction

         13  projects from the Board of Ed in the fall. These

         14  projects are classified in two phases: Phase one,

         15  which includes masonry, exterior and parapet repairs

         16  usually is scheduled for completion within one year.

         17                 Phase two includes window replacement

         18  and usually is scheduled for completion within two

         19  years. Generally construction is completed prior to

         20  the start of a school year.

         21                 To date DDC completed work on 171

         22  schools for a total value of about $330 million. The

         23  number of design and construction completions for

         24  DDC's libraries program has steadily increased since

         25  the agency's inception.
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          2                 DDC completed 90 projects in Fiscal

          3  Year 1999, an increase of over 200 percent from the

          4  26 library projects completed in Fiscal Year '96.

          5                 Since its creation in 1996, DDC has

          6  worked to shorten the duration of construction

          7  projects in order to reduce the impact of noise,

          8  obstructions from equipment and machinery, traffic

          9  delays and detours on local streets.

         10                 As a result of our efforts, DDC has

         11  further reduced the average construction duration of

         12  typical public facilities and infrastructure

         13  projects by approximately 43 percent.

         14                 The Department measures on-time

         15  project performance against dates specified in the

         16  contract, which is based on standard durations.

         17                 The project is considered early if it

         18  is completed more than 30 days prior to the

         19  completion date established in the contract,

         20  excluding client delays.

         21                 In FY 1997, DDC completed 154

         22  projects, 47 percent of which came in on or ahead of

         23  schedule. This jumped to 334 projects completed in

         24  Fiscal Year 1998 with 63 percent of them on or ahead

         25  of schedule. And in Fiscal Year 1999, of the 434
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          2  projects completed, 77 percent or more were done on

          3  or ahead of schedule.

          4                 This means that from FY '97 to FY

          5  '99, the agency's early on-time performance

          6  increased by 67 percent.

          7                 In Fiscal Year 1999, the Department

          8  continued its quality assurance report card program

          9  which rates infrastructure division projects for

         10  management, record keeping, construction, quality,

         11  safety and site maintenance.

         12                 A comprehensive quality assurance

         13  checklist for Structures Division projects was

         14  developed during FY '98 and implemented during FY

         15  '99.

         16                 During FY '99, DDC rated 58 percent

         17  of its active construction projects in both the

         18  Structures and Infrastructure Divisions. At least 60

         19  percent will be rated in Fiscal Year 2000. An

         20  initiative is underway to automate the report card

         21  function with an application for hand-held devices

         22  that will enable field staff to enter evaluation

         23  data while on site.

         24                 In FY '99, 39 DDC contracts were

         25  awarded under the stringent pre-award process
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          2  implemented in FY '98. Of the 85 bid packages

          3  reviewed, eight were rejected for financial reasons

          4  and 58 for technical reasons. The rejection of those

          5  bid packages ensures a higher quality pool of

          6  contractors working for the City of New York.

          7                 In Fiscal Year '98, DDC instituted an

          8  infrastructure research and development program to

          9  identify new technologies and materials, design and

         10  construction methods and innovative contracting and

         11  management techniques, to improve the infrastructure

         12  construction process.

         13                 As a result of the program, DDC now

         14  uses state-of-the-art survey equipment, including

         15  robotic total surveying stations, global positioning

         16  system and laser distance measuring devices.

         17                 At the end of Fiscal Year 1999, DDC

         18  had 53 registered architects and 184 professional

         19  engineers on staff. A major focus of DDC is on

         20  enhancing the professional and technical proficiency

         21  of the architects and engineers who work at DDC.

         22                 Our internal university trained more

         23  than 1,000 employees in more than 50 courses last

         24  fiscal year.

         25                 A highly trained and technically
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          2  qualified staff is key to the successful delivery of

          3  our design and construction projects.

          4                 The substantially reformed payment

          5  process introduced in FY '97, which includes a

          6  computer application to track payments,

          7  centralization of the payment functions to eliminate

          8  redundancy and target completion dates for each step

          9  in the payment process continues to be a success.

         10                 The Department received two awards

         11  from the Procurement Policy Board for the new

         12  payment process. The prompt payment award for the

         13  most improved capital agency in FY '98 and the

         14  prompt payment award for best overall New York City

         15  capital agency in FY '99.

         16                 Implementation of a new change order

         17  process was a major priority for DDC. The new

         18  process and forms were first used agencywide last

         19  February. Initial results are promising. Between

         20  February and June, 72 percent of the 334 change

         21  orders initiated were registered in an average of 28

         22  days. During the same period the prior year, only 50

         23  percent of the 604 change orders initiated were

         24  registered in an average of 33 days.

         25                 Phase one of a new computer system,
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          2  Standardized Change Order Record Entry, or SCORE, is

          3  being developed to track the status of each change

          4  order and identify the cause of any delays. The

          5  system is scheduled for implementation later this

          6  month.

          7                 In Fiscal Year 1999, the Department

          8  initiated the development of contract data system,

          9  CDS, a customized computer application that will

         10  centrally maintain information about all DDC

         11  contracts. CDS will link to project and payment data

         12  in DDC's existing systems. This system will improve

         13  the management of the capital commitment plan,

         14  project schedules and budgets. We are currently

         15  piloting CDS.

         16                 With less than six weeks before the

         17  start of a new year, all of DDC's mission critical

         18  or high priority applications have been certified

         19  Y2K ready.

         20                 These 10 systems include bid scope

         21  and GDS, both of which underwent remediation to make

         22  them Y2K ready.

         23                 In addition, DDC has certified that

         24  its other assets are Y2K compliant. The agency

         25  recently submitted a roll-over plan to the Y2K
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          2  project office to help prepare for the transition

          3  from 1999 to the Year 2000.

          4                 Besides various reviews by the

          5  Mayor's Y2K project office, a quality assurance

          6  consultant has been engaged to independently verify

          7  the Y2K readiness effort.

          8                 The agency also has contingency plans

          9  in place in the event of any system failures.

         10                 In Fiscal Year '99, the Department

         11  introduced an on-line bidders application form on

         12  the DDC Home Page of the NYC-LINK, the official city

         13  web site. This new form offers contractors a

         14  convenient state-of-the-art means to request

         15  inclusion on the Department's bidders list

         16  electronically, thereby receiving notification of

         17  bid opportunities.

         18                 Contractors submit the forms on line

         19  and receive electronic reply from DDC confirming

         20  receipts.

         21                 The Department also posts job

         22  openings on NYC-LINK as part of a Citywide

         23  initiative to recruit qualified applicants.

         24                 The Department's Office of Community

         25  Outreach and Notification had a strong year. It
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          2  works to community boards, residents, merchants and

          3  local elected officials informed of infrastructure

          4  projects in their communities.

          5                 The Office produces and distributes

          6  brochures that describe the scope and schedules of

          7  planned projects.

          8                 They also provide the names and

          9  telephone numbers of staff who can answer questions

         10  and solve problems associated with each project.

         11                 In June 1999, the Department

         12  introduced an enhanced Internet web page to provide

         13  DDC staff with wider access to information.

         14                 In addition to the agency's phone

         15  directory, frequently used forms and searchable

         16  manuals are now accessible on-line, increasing

         17  efficiency and reducing paper use.

         18                 In April 1999, the Department

         19  introduced new high performance building guidelines,

         20  which include objectives, technical strategies and

         21  performance criteria for the design, construction

         22  and operation of more energy efficient buildings.

         23  These new guidelines are intended to be applied to

         24  select capital projects in order to achieve high

         25  performance goals, such as improved indoor air
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          2  quality and reduced operating cost.

          3                 The new South Jamaica Branch of the

          4  Queens Borough Public Library, which incorporates

          5  these guidelines, is approaching substantial

          6  completion and is expected to open in late December.

          7                 This concludes my prepared testimony.

          8  I will be pleased to respond to any questions you or

          9  members of the Committee may have.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you

         11  very much, Mr. Holden. And let me congratulate you

         12  on your promotion.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Thank you

         14  very much.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And I

         16  wish you success when they determine who is going to

         17  be the permanent leader of this agency.

         18                 How do you, for some basic

         19  information, what determines when a project is being

         20  conducted or built under the design and construction

         21  or say by DOT or DEP? Is there a dollar figure?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: No, right

         23  now it is all of DOT's street construction projects.

         24  The bridge project still remains with the Department

         25  of Transportation.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 It is all of the sewer and water main

          3  projects by the Department of Environmental

          4  Protection, they still retain control over the water

          5  pollution control plant projects, as well as the

          6  water tunnel, the third water tunnel project. And

          7  the agency formerly known as general services and

          8  now Department of Citywide Administrative Services,

          9  their building construction program is within DDC's

         10  purview currently.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: DEC?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: The

         13  Department of Design and Construction.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Assuming

         15  there is a sewer collapse, is that done by DEP or is

         16  it done by you?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Emergency

         18  response is still handled by the Department of

         19  Environmental Protection. So, DEP still responds to

         20  sewer and water main emergencies. So, if there is a

         21  collapse in the middle of the street in the middle

         22  of the night, DEP gets called. They will make the

         23  emergency repair at some point, if they decide to do

         24  some sort of long-term reconstruction for that sewer

         25  or watermain, they will ask us to perform that.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And DEP

          3  does the design for sewer?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: No, sir.

          5  We do all the design. We do the construction as

          6  well.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You do

          8  all of the design for any sewer construction?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Any new sewer

         11  construction?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Correct.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: In

         14  consultation with?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: With the

         16  Department of Environmental Protection, correct.

         17                 They will give us drainage plans and

         18  other technical data that we need in order to

         19  complete the design, or in order to initiate the

         20  design, and then we will gather that data, we will

         21  do a survey of the area, and do the design.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Good.

         23  Because, see, when the community has a sewer

         24  concern, they don't negotiate with your office. They

         25  never see your office. They see Mr. Miele.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            69

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Joel

          3  Miele?

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Not only

          5  Mr. Miele, but Mr. Miele's sewer person.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Doug

          7  Greeley?

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: No,

          9  another one.

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Jack

         11  Vocrow?

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Anyway.

         13  He is on the parkway over there.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: I will

         15  have to pull out my Green Book.

         16                 But you are right, what happens is

         17  they prioritize the projects, they give us their

         18  list of projects within a given fiscal year,

         19  certainly there are revisions during the course of

         20  the fiscal year, but community boards, residents,

         21  elected officials who are looking for projects for

         22  us to perform need to talk to Environmental

         23  Protection.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: They are
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          2  our client. We design and build the projects they

          3  give us.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Because I

          5  am going through the process right now, and I never

          6  see you. But once all of those design factors and

          7  engineering factors are in place, or in conjunction

          8  with putting them in place --

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Once they

         10  have given us the project, we are the responsible

         11  party. Once they have decided to make it a priority

         12  and fund it within a given fiscal year, it is our

         13  responsibility.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         15                 Council Member Leffler, you can go

         16  ahead.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: These are

         18  big shoes to fill.

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: I

         20  recognize that.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: The

         22  Council has sought information from the Department

         23  of Design and Construction for some time, which we

         24  feel would improve our ability to do oversight of

         25  the City's construction program. Can you comment on
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          2  what the status of providing us with this

          3  information is? Publication of your construction and

          4  design indicators on a quarterly basis.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: I am

          6  sorry, I am not sure I understand the question.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Over a

          8  period of time, I think it has been years, the

          9  Council has sought more information on a periodic

         10  basis from the Department of Design and

         11  Construction, so that we could monitor projects, do

         12  legislative oversight, et cetera. So, could I go

         13  through a number of these items that we sought, and

         14  would you be good enough to comment on what the

         15  status is of our request to get such information?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: I am

         17  aware that Chairman Berman recently wrote a letter

         18  requesting information on all of the City Council

         19  funded projects that DDC was responsible for and we

         20  just submitted an update on all of that. We have the

         21  ability to give any kind of update.

         22                 I mean, we do have a system that is

         23  called Project Info, a computer project management

         24  system that does allow us to give you updates on a

         25  quarterly basis. It is not a problem.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: As I

          4  said, I just signed a letter to Chairman Berman this

          5  week or last week responding to his request.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

          7  This would include the Citywide projects as well?

          8  Not just --

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: It can

         10  include any project that DDC is responsible for.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: What is

         12  the status of request to establish uniform and

         13  citywide rules regarding the use of pass-through

         14  contracts? I believe recommendations were due within

         15  six months of the signing of the DDC legislation,

         16  and I believe we are still --

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: I will

         18  have to get back to you. To be honest, I am not sure

         19  where we are with the -- I know we are still doing a

         20  considerable number of pass throughs, making a

         21  uniform policy regarding them was a highlight

         22  several years back and I don't think it has been

         23  looked at in awhile. But I can get back to you and

         24  let you know where we are at with that, I am not

         25  sure.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay,

          3  please.

          4                 There are issues, so-called

          5  certificates to proceed, are there not? By the

          6  Office of Management and Budget, the Mayor and the

          7  -- on that basis projects move forth, can we get

          8  copies of these at least on a quarterly basis?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Copies of

         10  our certificates to proceed from the Office of

         11  Management and Budget?

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. It

         13  would seem to me that at the least getting it on a

         14  periodic, quarterly or even 30-day basis would be

         15  helpful. Or a status report.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: I can

         17  certainly copy the CPs that we get from OMB. I

         18  believe those have a distribution from the Office of

         19  Management and Budget that include the affected

         20  local officials, including the Borough President,

         21  and the Councilman. I will verify if that is the

         22  case. If not, we can --

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: If the

         24  Council would like to get those reports within 30

         25  days --
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: I can

          3  talk to the Office of Management and Budget about

          4  including that in some sort of distribution.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank

          6  you.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We are

          8  getting organized, Mr. Holden, and I hope that

          9  Chairman will be back shortly.

         10                 In Fiscal 1999, DDC was able to

         11  ensure that 90 percent of its construction projects

         12  were completed within a ten percent contingency for

         13  cost overruns. In Fiscal 2000, the Department is

         14  planning on only ensuring that 80 percent of the

         15  projects are completed within a ten percent

         16  contingency.

         17                 Why is the Fiscal 2000 target lower

         18  than the '99 actual? Why isn't the Department

         19  challenging itself to perform the higher level?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: I think

         21  while the overall percentage might be lower, the

         22  overall volume of projects is greater.

         23                 Our commitment plan has risen pretty

         24  dramatically over the three years that we have been

         25  established. I believe the first year we were
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          2  talking about a 600 million or 700 million dollar

          3  commitment plan target, now this year we have about

          4  a 1.2 to 1.4 billion dollar target, so we have a lot

          5  more projects that we are performing and so the

          6  overall number is increasing, while the percentage

          7  might be less than our actuals from the prior year.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, less

          9  is more?

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: In a

         11  manner of speaking, you are absolutely right.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         13                 The Department has been very

         14  successful in the last few years in meeting its

         15  target percentage for projects that are completed on

         16  or ahead of schedule.

         17                 It is still unclear, however, how the

         18  Department establishes its target. Can you explain

         19  how the targets are set?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: What we

         21  have done now is we have established what we call

         22  standard durations for projects. We have taken a

         23  look at our portfolio of projects and established

         24  standard durations for projects based on the dollar

         25  amount of the project, as well as the type of
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          2  construction. And now we are fitting in our

          3  contracts, we are scheduling those projects based on

          4  those standard durations. Projects that are early or

          5  late have a 30-day leeway from that standard

          6  duration time.

          7                 If a project was completed more than

          8  30 days earlier than the schedule it is considered

          9  early, and if it is completed more than 30 days

         10  after that standard duration it is considered late.

         11                 Those standard durations are based on

         12  dollar amount and the type of construction, and now

         13  we are using those as the criteria for establishing

         14  schedules in our contracts.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: In Fiscal

         16  1998, the Department had 136 job slots that it did

         17  not fill. In Fiscal 1999, 149 positions are shown as

         18  unfilled. Do these fiscal '99 vacancies cover the

         19  same positions that went unfilled in Fiscal '98?

         20                 If yes, why weren't people hired for

         21  these positions? And which positions were affected?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: We are

         23  trying. We are trying.

         24                 The construction industry right now

         25  is extremely robust.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Good. So

          3  is everything else.

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Exactly.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The

          6  economy is strong.

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: What is

          8  happening is that the City is competing with many

          9  private firms for the same architects, engineers,

         10  construction project managers that we would like to

         11  hire, and it is hard. It is a tough competition. We

         12  are trying many different ways, more creative ads,

         13  we are trying to lure people in for positions where

         14  we might not be able to match the salary that the

         15  private sector has to offer. We can certainly give

         16  people greater responsibility generally than is

         17  offered in the private sector.

         18                 It is difficult in this current

         19  environment to compete head to head with the private

         20  sector with such a robust economy and with the

         21  construction industry doing so well. We have lost

         22  some people.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I just

         24  want to ask one question.

         25                 On page four of your testimony, under
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          2  the pre-award process implemented in Fiscal Year

          3  '98. Of the 85 bid packages reviewed, eight were

          4  rejected for financial reasons, and 38 for technical

          5  reasons. The rejection of those bid packages ensures

          6  a higher quality pool of contractors working for the

          7  City of New York.

          8                 Speaking of pool of contractors

          9  there, even in the best of times, there is a

         10  prevailing view in some communities, specifically

         11  the African-American communities, that we are not

         12  getting our share of City-funded projects and that

         13  is based on the belief that you can do more with

         14  City dollars, public dollars, than you can with

         15  private dollars.

         16                 How do you respond? Are you making

         17  that kind of consistent effort? Do you have an

         18  apparatus in place to ensure that New York City's

         19  diverse population is reflected in those people who

         20  are receiving these contracts and job opportunities?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Well, we

         22  do abide by the prevailing rules which are the

         23  City's Procurement Policy Board rules. Most of our

         24  construction projects are competitively bid.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I
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          2  understand competitively bid. No such thing as -- do

          3  you have anything such as set-asides, goals and

          4  percentages? None at all?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Not

          6  unless this body legislates them, right now there

          7  are none.

          8                 I mean, we try to participate in

          9  various open houses and in various associations, and

         10  we try to participate to make people aware. As I

         11  mentioned in my testimony, we put our -- tried to

         12  make it easier for people to become a part of our

         13  bidders list and so on, but right now there are in

         14  fact no set asides.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Beyond

         16  that, unless they are the lowest responsible

         17  bidders?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: There is

         19  nothing I can do.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What

         21  about subcontractors? How do you -- do you have any

         22  way of conveying to the contractor, or the person

         23  who has won the contract, that that effort should be

         24  made where subspecialties are required? So, you have

         25  no -- do you have any --
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: The

          3  sunsetting of the minority and women business

          4  enterprise guidelines, which I believe expired in

          5  June of last year, were replaced by the existing LBE

          6  guidelines, the Locally Based Enterprise guidelines.

          7  Those are in fact geographically based, as opposed

          8  to race or sex based. But contractors that do

          9  subcontract out, according to the LBE rules are

         10  required to do at least ten percent of their

         11  business with certified LBEs, those are locally

         12  based companies. But again, that is the rule on the

         13  book and that is certainly what we are abiding by at

         14  this time.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So there

         16  is much work to be done.

         17                 Thank you, Commissioner, on that.

         18                 So, we are asking or suggesting,

         19  requesting, that next year's MMR includes a safety

         20  goal; is that clear?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: A safety

         22  goal?

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Sure.

         24  Safety means, health and safety-related matters.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: We have
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          2  instituted a considerable number of safety

          3  procedures on our construction sites.

          4                 We are now looking at contractor

          5  safety records, prior to awarding contracts to make

          6  sure that they not only have a site safety plan for

          7  the project for which they are being awarded but

          8  also we take a look at some of their insurance

          9  records and their prior safety infractions before

         10  actually awarding the contract so we can see if in

         11  fact they are going to be providing a safe workplace

         12  for their workers, as well as for the public.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Do you

         14  think that would be a useful bit of information? We

         15  think it would be useful in the MMR. I mean, people

         16  dangling from cranes, dangling from collapsed

         17  scaffolding and cranes and other kinds of --

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Well,

         19  fortunately not on our jobs, but there has been in

         20  the City a number of high profile, very exciting

         21  accidents and rescues.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That has

         23  been a topic of several hearings of our Committee so

         24  the Council is very sensitive to the needs, and I

         25  think as the statistics in the MMR, it would be
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          2  helpful to have guidelines.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Certainly

          4  a safety indicator is something that we can discuss

          5  with the Mayor's Office of Operations.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          7                 Let me ask you about the OSHA

          8  violations. What percentage of current construction

          9  projects have received OSHA violations? And what

         10  were the violations for, if you can recall, in line

         11  with the safety issues?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: I

         13  wouldn't really know. The contractor gets the OSHA

         14  violations and not the agency, and we are not always

         15  necessarily informed.

         16                 I could see if I could get back to

         17  you with the number of OSHA violations that we are

         18  aware of that our contractors have received and what

         19  categories those fall into, but certainly off the

         20  top of my head I am not aware.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, we

         22  would appreciate it if you could arrange to give us

         23  that information.

         24                 Just a minute, Commissioner.

         25                 Commissioner, are you familiar with a
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          2  Citywide protocol for e-mail routing, tracking and

          3  response time?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Yes.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: All

          6  right. Can you describe it for us?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN:

          8  Commissioners are required to respond to all

          9  correspondence within ten business days. At DDC we

         10  are tracking correspondence that comes in to my

         11  office, both electronic and standard paper

         12  correspondence, and I do get drafts, make sure it is

         13  responded to in ten days.

         14                 The same standard is applied to

         15  Deputy Commissioners, Assistant Commissioners,

         16  Directors and Deputy Directors at DDC.

         17                 As of December 1st, we will have a

         18  system which will track the Deputy and Assistant

         19  Commissioners' compliance with the ten-day standard,

         20  and by the end of March we will have a system in

         21  place that will track all Director and Deputy

         22  Directors' compliance with the ten-day standard.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Very

         24  good.

         25                 Do you have a written copy of that
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          2  protocol?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Yes, we

          4  do.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And could

          6  you provide us with a written copy?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN:

          8  Absolutely.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank

         10  you.

         11                 Does your agency have a protocol for

         12  e-mail routing, tracking and response time?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: They are

         14  both covered by the same protocol, both electronic

         15  and paper mail.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. All

         17  right.

         18                 How long has your agency had an

         19  e-mail protocol, if you know?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: August

         21  6th, 1999.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: August

         23  6th, did you ask for a mailing address of

         24  individuals who correspond by e-mail?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: I beg
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          2  your pardon?

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Do you

          4  ask for a mailing address of individuals who

          5  correspond by e-mail?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Yes.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          8                 How do you respond to e-mail, by

          9  replying by mail or by e-mail? Do you respond to

         10  e-mail by mail or e-mail?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Go ahead.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Hi. My

         13  name is Steve Murphy, Deputy Commissioner for

         14  Technology and Policy Analysis.

         15                 All of our e-mails that come in --

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What was

         17  that first title?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Deputy

         19  Commissioner for Technology and Policy.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Oh,

         21  Technology, I see.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MURPHY: All of

         23  our e-mails that come in the agency, we ask whoever

         24  sends it to put their e-mail address on. We prefer

         25  to send electronic response. If it is not we go to
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          2  the standard address and send them a letter.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank

          4  you.

          5                 Do you provide acknowledgments upon

          6  receipt of e-mail?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Yes, we

          8  do.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Does the

         10  acknowledgment also notify the sender as to when a

         11  response will be provided?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: In other

         13  words, are they informed that they will receive a

         14  response within ten business days?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MURPHY: They

         16  receive an immediate response that we have gotten

         17  the e-mail, and then the policy takes place after

         18  that with the ten days, they get the response on

         19  whatever the issue is.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: So, no,

         21  they are not immediately notified, they will hear

         22  back from us within ten business days, but that is

         23  our standard. And as I said, we will be tracking

         24  people's compliance with that as of next month.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.
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          2                 What percentage of inquiries and/or

          3  complaints, are handled by e-mail versus telephone

          4  or mail? Or regular mail?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: I can

          6  only speak for my office, in my office I am probably

          7  still getting 95 percent mail, paper mail, and maybe

          8  five percent e-mail. It might be greater in Deputy

          9  Commissioner Murphy's Office, I am assuming it is

         10  greater. He deals much more in the IT world

         11  directly.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:

         13  Commissioner Murphy.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MURPHY: The large

         15  majority of e-mail that we have coming in is

         16  regarding our bid form that we talked about in the

         17  testimony. And that automatically you get a receipt

         18  of acknowledgment right away. Other than that we

         19  don't get a large volume.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The

         21  regular people are still writing you letters?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Right.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is the

         24  e-mail option advertised on your telephone answering

         25  service?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: I don't

          3  believe it is.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: All

          5  right. Since there is no other member of the

          6  Committee to ask questions, and I have exhausted my

          7  own list, I want to thank you for your time and

          8  testimony, and we will be in touch.

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER HOLDEN: Thank you

         10  very much. Happy Thanksgiving.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER SPIGNER: There

         12  being no further business before the Committee at

         13  this time, this portion of the Mayor's Management

         14  Report conducted by the Finance Committee is

         15  adjourned.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 12:10 p.m.)
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